
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 
Panel to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 18 February 2019

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 2, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of meeting held on 21 January 2019 and matters arising (Pages 1 - 4)

4  Library Implementation Plan Update (Pages 5 - 6)

5  Place Directorate Business Plan Quarterly Update (Pages 7 - 16)

6  Greater Manchester Taxi Policy - Update/Progress (verbal) 

7  New Greater Manchester Waste Contract Update (verbal) 

8  Work Programme 2018/19 (Pages 17 - 24)

9  Any other business 

10  Next Meeting - 18 March 2019 at 2.00 pm 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013
Mike Relph Senior Democratic Services Adviser E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL

21st January 2018

Meeting commenced: 2.05 p.m.
“                  ended: 3:45 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Mullen - in the Chair

Councillors Fletcher, Karen Garrido, McCusker and Turner 

OFFICERS: Sarah Ashurst - Group Leader (Investment)
Jeanette Staley - Head of Community Safety
John Horrocks - Engineering Assistant/Technician, Urban Vision 
Paul Hutchings - Strategic Finance Manager
Mike Relph - Senior Democratic Services Adviser

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillors Hunt, Ryan, Joan 
Walsh and Warner.

2. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 19th November, 2018, were agreed 
as a correct record.

3. BUDGET 2018/19 MONITORING

The Strategic Director for Place submitted a report providing an update in relation to 
the budget position of his service groups, with specific reference to the following:-

 Revenue Budget 2018/19
 Capital Programme 2018/19
 Progress in achieving agreed savings 2018/19

In addition to the report, a briefing note was also submitted with regard to the Salford 
Innovation Park, which provided additional information as requested by the Panel at 
their meeting held on 15th October, 2018 (Minute 4 (c)).

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) What was the chief cause of the forecast variation in terms of the Housing, 
Communities and Neighbourhoods and Environment and Community Safety 
elements of the Revenue Budget 2018/19? It was indicated this was primarily due to 
the anticipated benefits of the transformation programme not yet being fully realised. 
In the short term these variations would be offset against other service areas

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



(b) What were the reasons for the underachievement against that estimated, in terms 
of income for the Salford University Business Park (SUBP)? It was reported the 
letting of units had not been at the level expected, which in turn had reduced income. 
In addition the unrecoverable costs incurred, as a result of the high void levels on the 
estate, had to be balanced against this. In the long term the Crescent Masterplan 
aimed to revive the fortunes of the SUBP.

(c) What were the current number of void premises/units on the SUBP? It was 
indicated this information could be provided.

(d) It was commented that the SUBP seemed to have failed to realise its expected 
potential. Similarly there was a possible need to review the current contract of 
Manchester Science Partnerships (MSP) to manage the site to ensure it provided 
value for money and this served the best interests in ensuring the growth and 
success of the SUBP.

(e) It was suggested it would be beneficial to include details of the scheduling of 
elements within individual budgets in future reports to provide an indication of when 
these would be achieved during the course of the financial year. 

(f) Supplementary information was provided in terms of savings achieved as a result 
of income secured by the Trading Standards through the Proceeds of Crime Act 
(POCA) 2017.

(g) It was confirmed that the investment made last year in digitising the Book of 
Remembrance and converting it to an online facility, would mean weekend staffing 
was no longer required.

(h) More detailed information was requested with regard to the Victoria Park Play 
Area refurbishments/improvements which were being met from Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 Section 106 funding.

(i) Clarification was sought as to the source funding for the following elements of the 
Capital Programme 2018/19:-

 Roe Green Play Facilities
 Lowry Investment

(j) Reference was made to the Empty Property Project Costs within the Capital 
Programme 2018/19 and the individual properties and schemes being met from this.

(k) It was suggested that it would be of use to be provided with a breakdown of 
projects/schemes being funded through Section 106 monies and relevant to the 
remit of the Panel as part of future quarterly budget monitoring updates 

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the report, specifically the Revenue Budget 2018/19, Capital 
Programme 2018/19, progress in achieving agreed savings for 2018/19 and further 
measures to bring forecast expenditure back in line with the budget, be noted.

Page 2



(2) THAT briefing note, with regard to the Salford Innovation Park be 
forwarded to the Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel, where they be requested to 
consider its contents, and their attention specifically drawn to the following 
elements/issues (as detailed in (a),(b),(c) and (d) above):-

 The methodology used in income forecasting projected income of the SUBP
 The contract and performance of MSP who currently have responsibility for 

the management of the SUBP site.
 Current void levels.
 Whether current rental rates act as an incentive, or a deterrent, to businesses 

looking to relocate.
 Long term aims for the SUBP as part of the wider Crescent Masterplan and 

the potential for any of these to be realised earlier 

(3) THAT the Strategic Director for Place and Chief Finance Officer be 
requested to provide the further/additional information as detailed in (h) and (i) 
above.

(4) THAT the feasibility for future reports to include (a) estimated
timescales for implementation/completion of individual elements of budgets and (b) a 
breakdown of projects and  schemes being funded through Section 106 monies and 
relevant to the remit of the Panel, be investigated (see (e) and (k) above).

4. LIBRARY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN UPDATE
(Previous Minute 5 - 19 March 2018)

RESOLVED:   THAT the report be deferred until the next meeting of the Panel to be 
held on 18th February, 2019.

  
5. FLY-POSTING

(Previous Minute 4(f) - 19 November 2018)

John Horrocks provided an overview of the activities and enforcement action 
undertaken by Urban Vision on behalf of Salford City Council in tackling the problem 
of fly-posting. It was indicated that enforcement powers were contained in the 
Highways Act 1980 which caused difficulties in terms of prosecution, as this had to 
be taken against the actual person responsible for posting the offending signage, 
rather than the company it was advertising/promoting etc.

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) The possible opportunities for Salford City Council to be more proactive in 
enforcement terms, for example when unauthorised signage was promoting 
companies who were licensed by the local authority, such as private hire firms. It 
was indicated that again the limitations Highways Act 1980 often prevented this.

(b) The arising traffic safety dangers of unauthorised signage placed at major 
junctions, as well as their general unsightliness.

Page 3



RESOLVED: (1) THAT John Horrocks be thanked for both his attendance and the 
overview he had provided, the contents of which be noted.

(2) THAT thanks and satisfaction be extended to the Urban Vision 
Asset Management Division for their current activities and enforcement actions with 
regard to fly-posting. 

6. SALFORD CITY COUNCIL’S EMERGENCY PLANNING AND BUSINESS 
CONTINUITY APPROACH

The Strategic Director for Place, submitted a report providing an update on the 
progress made in emergency planning and business continuity since February 2018, 
which followed the transfer of this area of activity to the Place Directorate in May 
2017.

The report highlighted work undertaken since February 2018 which had focused on 
developing skills and expertise to deliver appointed roles and discharge duties such 
as those highlighted under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) Who had responsibility in terms of incidents occurring on the motorway network 
with the City? Incidents on the actual motorway were within the remit of Highways 
England, however these often impacted on the surrounding local road network and 
area, so a multi agency approach was taken.

(b) In response to a question, it was reported that emergency data back-up services 
were located in central Manchester.

RESOLVED:  THAT the contents of the detailed and comprehensive report be noted 
and a further update be provide in 12 months time.

7. WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

Members gave consideration to the Panel’s suggested Work Programme for 
2018/19. 

RESOLVED: THAT the Panel’s Work Programme 2018/19 as now submitted, be 
approved subject to the incorporation of the following matters:-

 Salford City Council’s Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Approach 
Update (see Minute 6 above) - provisionally January 2020.

 Proposed new GMP (Greater Manchester Police) Divisional Structure

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday, 18th 
February, 2019, commencing at 2.00 pm.

Page 4



Salford Community Leisure:  Library Implementation Plan
Updated January 2019 

2017/2018implementation plan:

 Install Open + system at Cadishead Library 
To be implemented in addition to existing staffed hours February 2019 – March 2019, to be 
implemented fully from April 2019

 Extend opening hours (with change in staffing arrangements) at Lower Kersal Library and Clifton 
Library (phased approach –  to 15 hours weekly opening at Clifton and 60 weekly at Lower Kersal)  
Target 60 hours at Lower Kersal by April 2019   Clifton currently reviewing community centre staffing 
arrangements.

 Work with Worsley Village Community Association to change the balance of community involvement 
and library staff at Worsley Village Library (phased approach 10 hours weekly opening to be picked 
up by the Community Association)   
5 hours now picked up by WVCA.  Target 10 hours by April 2019

 Install charging points at 5 libraries: Lower Kersal, Little Hulton, Swinton, Broughton and Eccles  
Target 5 libraries by April 2019

 Relocate the children’s library at Walkden Gateway to be incorporated within the main library on the 
ground floor   
Target by April 2019 
PLUS Relocate the children’s library at Pendleton Gateway to be incorporated within the main 
library.   Target by April 2019

 Install people’s network access at Helly Hansen Watersports Centre, Worsley Leisure Centre and 
Irlam & Cadishead Leisure Centre  
Offer at Worsley Leisure Centre from February 2019 to be Click & Collect books &  IT learning 
opportunities for Centre users.   Other centres to be completed by March 2020

 Install refreshment provision in two libraries, Cadishead and, Height  
Completed

 Extend Salford Heritage merchandising from the shops at Ordsall Hall and Salford Museum & Art 
Gallery into 2 libraries, Walkden and Height  
Completed

 Install books self issue machines at two outstanding libraries; Hope and Clifton  
Completed (& all libraries refreshed) by end December 2018 

 Install self issue printing at all 16 libraries  
Completed at 13 libraries.  Target all 16 by April 2019 

 Replace all People’s Network ICT equipment with new equipment (217 PC’s and screens, and 4 
Apple Mac’s)  
PCs and screens completed.  Apple MACS target April 2019

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Indicative 2018/2019 implementation plan:

 Install Open + system at a further library (to be determined following feasibility assessment)  
Potentially by April 2020 depending on feasibility and Cadishead experience.

 Extend opening hours (with change in staffing arrangements) at Lower Kersal Library and Clifton 
Library (final phase –  to 18 hours weekly opening at Clifton and 79 weekly at Lower Kersal) 

Target by April 2020

 Extend opening hours (with change in staffing arrangements and minor capital works) at Boothstown 
Library to 48 hours  
Potentially by April 2020, depending on shared service/staffing developments at the site.  

 Work with Worsley Village Community Association to change the balance of community involvement 
and library staff at Worsley Village Library (final phase 20 hours weekly opening to be picked up by 
the Community Association) 
Target by April 2020 

 Install charging points at remaining 8 neighbourhood libraries: Winton, Irlam, Cadishead, Height, 
Hope, Worsley Village, Boothstown, Ordsall  
Target by April 2020

 Install people’s network access at Broughton Leisure Centre  
Target by April 2020 

 Install refreshment provision in further three libraries; Eccles, Broughton and Little Hulton  
Little Hulton target by April 2019, Eccles and Broughton by April 2020

 Extend Salford Heritage merchandising from the shops at Ordsall Hall and Salford Museum & Art 
Gallery into further 2 libraries, Swinton and Broughton  
Target April 2019

 Work with Salford University to promote the accessibility of the University new library to wider Salford 
residents 
Target April 2019

Financial position

Capital spend - 4 year profile for £490k (does not include £100k allocated for replacement PC’s) - £213k 
committed/spent to date.

Revenue position – 4 year profile reduced to 3 due to late start as delays to approval - total £549k.
£141k to be achieved by SCL for end March 19 achieved – future risk of £150k shortfall overall due to 
change in approach to reduction in space at Gateways.

Page 6



Place Business Plan
Priorities & outputs that fall under Community & Neighbourhood Scrutiny Remit

2018 
2019

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5



01.
Place service 
priorities 

“Serving Salford”

• Transforming  the way we deliver services to our residents

• Delivery of vital services to make Salford a cleaner, greener and safer place

• Management of effective strategic partnerships including Urban Vision, 
Salford Community Leisure and Salix Homes

6

P
age 8



POPULATION PREDICTED TO GROW YEAR ON YEAR BY 2,200 TO REACH 300,000

02.
Salford growth 
context

GVA £5BN 
SET TO DOUBLE IN 
THE NEXT DECADE

FASTEST 
GROWING ECONOMY 
IN MANCHESTER

1,800 HOMES NEEDED 
YEAR ON YEAR BY 2040

STRONG RESIDENTIAL 
MARKET

AMBITIOUS UNIVERSITY – GRADUATE 
RETENTION GROWING YEAR ON YEAR

DEMAND FOR OFFICE SPACE 
DEMAND CONTINUES

4

P
age 9



03.
Place Revenue budget 

£90,300,913
Gross expenditure

(£45,330,347)
Income

£44,970,566
Net expenditure

P
age 10



04.
Reduction in Place expenditure  over last 5 years

£4.066m 
2017/18

£3.334m 
2016/17

£4.629m 
2015/16

£20.848m 
over the last 5 years

£6.982m 
2014/15

£1.837m 
2018/19

P
age 11



Objective Action Status Progress Comments

Supporting families to 
give the children the 
best start in life

To provide children with 
access to healthy school 
meals and promotion of 
healthy eating

The uptake level of school meals where Citywide provide the 
service was 69% in quarter 3. All meals served fully comply with 
school food standards with the service providing approximately 
13,500 healthy and nutritional meals across 71 school 
establishments on a daily basis.  

Supporting people to 
stay in their homes by 
reducing the cost of 
essential living

Supporting 500 older and 
vulnerable residents to 
maintain their homes in a 
safe, warm and dry 
condition

In quarter 3, 160 older and vulnerable residents were supported. 
The cumulative performance is 453 older and vulnerable residents 
supported. 

To assist 2,400 households 
to access energy efficiency 
measures and achieve 
affordable warmth

In quarter 3, a total of 1564 further measures were delivered. 
Cumulatively 1929 measures have now been delivered. 

Supporting people to 
participate in culture, 
leisure and sport

To increase regular 
participation in culture, 
sport and leisure activities 
to all

Overall participation in cultural, sport and leisure activities in 
the months October - December 2018 is 1.5% higher compared 
to the same period last year (October - December 2017). Over 1 
million visits have been recorded. Note this figure does not 
include library visits as per figures previously reported. 

05.
Business plan Q3 progress update 

P
age 12



Objective Action Status Progress Comments

Service & sustain an 
inclusive growing city

Deliver high performing 
refuse, recycling and street 
cleansing service

The current Waste, Recycling and Street Cleansing services are all 
performing to a high standard. Each service is expected to meet or 
exceed annual performance targets based on Q1, Q2 and Q3 
performance and year end projections. 

Street cleansing – Ensure 
that all the City’s adopted 
highways are Grade B+

All the adopted highways are swept and litter picked on cyclical 
basis (Minimum of 18 working days). The service has been 
enhanced with the introduction of an additional sweeping and 
litter picking team that is supporting the mainstream service in the 
removal of litter and detritus.

To build safer, stronger, 
more resilient communities 
in Salford and reduce the 
fear of crime

The Community Safety Partnership (CSP) has a 3 year plan to build 
safer, stronger, more resilient communities in Salford and reduce 
the fear of crime. To aid the achievement of the plan, there is an
established a strategic management report (a suite of indicators to 
track progress) and a series of delivery plans based on the 
community safety issues of importance. These delivery plans are 
on track for being achieved which will bring about long term 
strategic developments. 

05.
Business plan Q3 progress update 

P
age 13



06. 
Place Annual Outputs

1. 14 million bin collections

2. 1.450 commercial weekly waste contracts resulting 
in 75,000 collections

3. Delivery of grounds maintenance programme

4. Grade B+ adopted highways

5. 5 green flag award parks

6. 2,000 cremations & 500 burials 

7. 13,500 school meals served per day

P
age 14



07. 
Culture Outputs

1. Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) signed 
between the Council, the University of Salford and 
Arts Council England. 

2. The role of culture and the arts in the lives of 
people, the well-being and identity of communities 
and increasingly in place making and appreciating 
heritage needs anchor institutions to work together 
collaboratively. The MoU recognises this. 

3. Development of a new cultural strategy for the city 

4. Salford Community Leisure provide a range of sport, 
library and cultural offers across 40 venues in the 
city

P
age 15



Quote here about regeneration

P
age 16



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS

Date Topic/Action Responsible officer(s)

18th February 2019 New Greater Manchester Waste Contract Update 

Place Directorate Quarterly Update

Greater Manchester Taxi Policy - Update/Progress

Library Implementation Plan Update 

David Seager

Ben Dolan/David Seager

John Wooderson

David Seager/Steve 
Hassall

18th March 2019 Transformation Programme - Update/Progress

Greater Manchester Integrated Place

Peter Openshaw

Jacquie Russell

April 2019 No Meeting run up to local elections

20th May 2019 Budget 2018/2019 Monitoring (Quarterly)

Salford Community Safety Strategy - Performance/Update 

Paul Hutchings

Jeanette Staley

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 8



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

17th June 2019 Salford Community Leisure (SCL) Impact Report (June/July 2019? Annual 
Update last presented July 2018)

SCL Update - Business Plan/Capital Investment

Waste Collection Teams “In Cab” Technology Update  (previously submitted 
19/11/18)

Sam Sandford 

Steve Hassall

David Seager

22nd July 2019 Budget 2019/20209 Monitoring (Quarterly) Paul Hutchings

August 2019 No Meeting - Recess

16th September 2019

21st October 2019 Budget 2019/2020 Monitoring (Quarterly) Paul Hutchings

18th November 2019 Impact of the introduction of the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities 
Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018 Update (previously submitted 
1911/18)

December 2019 No Meeting - Christmas

20th January 2020 Salford City Council’s Emergency Planning and Business Community 
Approach Update (previously considered 21/1/19)

Jeanette Staley

P
age 18



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

ABEYANCE LIST

Continuing evaluation of additional £300,000 street cleaning initiatives funded through 2017/18 Budget 
(update provided to October 2018 meeting)  
Associated issues to be considered separately, or in conjunction with:-

 Tacking environmental crime; powers available and successes achieved
 Greenspace Strategy
 Restoration/revitalisation or alternative use of disused outdoor sports spaces (eg tennis courts) 

David Seager / David 
Robinson / John 
Wooderson

Protocol for Managing Unauthorised Encampments - current legislation and requirements of local 
authorities (information provided further consideration by Panel required to be confirmed)

Stephen Kearney/
Peter Openshaw

Progress on the development/introduction of a “”Street Charter” policy (initially considered 19/11/18) David  Seager

Proposed new GMP Divisional Structure GMP

P
age 19



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

Portfolio of the Board Membership

1. Community Safety 
2. Communities and Neighbourhoods 
3. Regulatory Services (including Environmental Health, Trading 
Standards, Licensing) 
4. Operational Services (including Citywide, bereavement, 
operational transport, refuse and street cleansing, parks 
management, grounds maintenance) 
5. Salford Community Leisure Client 
6. Cultural strategy 
7. to be the designated Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 
8. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area.

Councillor Mullen (Chair)
Councillor Karen Garrido (Deputy Chair)
Councillor Fletcher
Councillor Hesling
Councillor Hunt
Councillor McCusker
Councillor McIntyre
Councillor Ryan
Councillor Turner
Councillor Joan Walsh
Councillor Warner
Councillor Weir
Councillor Wheeler

P
age 20



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 
COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL - RESPONSES/UPDATES TO RECOMMENDATIONS 

TOPIC AND RECOMMENDATIONS UPDATE

1. 15 October 2018 - Waste and Recycling Management 

Request  for the Panel to be provided with the following –

 data on recycling rates, ideally on an electoral ward basis, or if this is not 
possible by collection day.

 data on fly tipping rates on an electoral ward basis, both pre and post 
the introduction of the three weekly domestic waste collection service.

 a demonstration of the “in cab” recording and monitoring technology, 
used by the teams undertaking the weekly domestic waste collection 
service.

Updates in respect of the three bullet points 
detailed were provided and considered at the 
19th November 2018 meeting.

2 15 October 2018 - Budget Monitoring (Salford Innovation Park)

Request for information with regard to progress with the Salford Innovation 
Park achieving current income targets. 

Requested update submitted to meeting on 21st 
January 2019 for consideration. (This matter 
primarily lies within the remit of the Growth and 
Prosperity Scrutiny Panel and if any further 
actions are deemed necessary the Panel may 
feel it more appropriate to refer them there)

P
age 21



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

3. 19 November 2018 - Waste Collection Teams “In Cab” Technology

The potential for income generation, further financial savings and other 
possible efficiencies, arising from the introduction of the new technology and 
the resulting information collected be encouraged and identified as part of 
continuing evaluation.

Further update be provided to the panel on progress with the introduction of the 
technology, its development, resulting benefits, potential for improvement and 
any other relevant issues.

Ongoing

Provisionally scheduled for June 2019 meeting.

4. 19 November 2018 - Waste Collection Rates/Fly-Tipping Incidents Update 

In recognition as its importance as a tool in combating fly-tipping, the Lead 
Member for Environment and Community Safety be requested to continue with 
current separate representations at a Greater Manchester level to (a) the Home 
Office requesting that funds raised through the Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) 
2002 could be used by local authorities for the provision of CCTV

The Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety to continue with 
representations H.M. Courts Service requesting the penalties for fly-tipping and 
environmental crime are proportionate with both the individual offence and the 
time and cost of the investigations into them, which led to a successful 
prosecution.

Ongoing - Panel to be updated on progress as 
necessary

Ongoing - Panel to be updated on progress as 
necessary

P
age 22



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

5. 19 November 2018 - Street Charter (Pavement and Public Areas Disabled 
Access)

Update to be provided on the creation of a “Street Charter” Ongoing - Panel to be updated on progress in 
due course as Charter is developed

6. 19 November 2018 - Licensing Arrangements for Animal Based Businesses

Further update to be provided detailing activity and arising issues as result of 
the introduction of the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving 
Animals) (England) Regulations 2018.

Provisionally scheduled for November 2019 
meeting.

7. 21 January 2019 - Budget 2018/19 Monitoring 

Issues with regard to the performance and management of the Salford 
University Business Park (SUBP) to be referred to the Growth and Prosperity 
Scrutiny Panel for consideration.

Further information/clarification sought in relation miscellaneous 
projects/schemes detailed within the Budget 2018/19

Referred to Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny 
Panel

Requested information circulated to members 
on 13 February 2019.

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 21 January 2019 and matters arising
	4 Library Implementation Plan Update
	5 Place Directorate Business Plan Quarterly Update
	8 Work Programme 2018/19

